From: Mark Balog

To: Phyllis Beaulieu

Subject: FW: 100510 2BB-MEL0914 Amendment Applications on Hold
Date: Monday, May 10, 2010 5:06:46 PM

Attachments: 100506 2BB-MEL0914 INAC Comments-IMLE.pdf

100510 2BB-MEL0914 Amendment Files on Hold-OT3E.pdf
CMF bonding response letter Apr 12.pdf

From: Mark Balog

Sent: Monday, May 10, 2010 5:05 PM

To: Phyllis Beaulieu <licensing@nunavutwaterboard.org; 'bernie.macisaac@inac.gc.ca'; Tanya Trenholm;
'‘Bryan Rayner'; 'dirlands@kivalliginuit.ca'; 'Veronica Tattuinee'; 'dionne@nunavutwaterboard.org’

Cc: John Witteman; Sandy Barham

Subject: FW: 100510 2BB-MEL0914 Amendment Applications on Hold

Hi Tanya,

We received a letter of yours dated May 6, 2010 that you sent to the NWB indicating that
Comaplex was in non-compliance due to it not submitting a $639,000 security bond for its
Meliadine project. Since your letter has resulted in the NWB not reviewing any of our present
amendments or applications, we obviously need to respond to you directly (see attached). Within
your letter, and also in the one from the NWB, there are two options available to Comaplex — we
have taken the option of providing a framework for the timely resolution of the bonding situation.

As you are hopefully aware, the issue of double bonding on exploration projects is a sensitive one.
Comaplex presently pays a $950,000 bond to the KivlA for the Meliadine project. Since the INAC
estimate of the cost to clean up water and land on the project is $639,000, we feel Comaplex is
overpaying to the KivlA already. Now we have the request for more security for the same thing
from INAC. This is not a new situation for mining companies operating in Nunavut, nor most
people would agree, a fair situation, but there appears to be a desire by all parties involved to try
to find a way to resolve this matter.

On April 12,2010, Comaplex sent a letter to the KIA, the NWB, and INAC explaining its stance on
the security request and in it provided several options for resolution of the double bonding issue
(see attached). A second letter to address an Inspector’s letter was sent to all parties on May 6,
2010. Additional discussions and correspondence with the heads of both the KivlA (Luis Manzo —
April 21, 2010) and INAC (Bernie Mclsaac — May 6, 2010) on the bonding issue were also made. In
the discussion with Bernie, we agreed that the KIA, INAC, and Comaplex would sit down together
in the next few weeks to try to resolve this. INAC will be setting up this meeting.

| am not sure what more you require in the form of a framework for resolution of the bonding from
Comaplex, but there has been active and positive participation by the various parties to work this
out. You may not have been aware of these discussions and we hope that with this information
you will allow the NWB to quickly progress with their study and approval of the three amendments
now before them. We are trying to get this resolved and have a history of working through these
matters with the regulators. If you require any additional information, please contact me directly.
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I * I Indian and Northern Affaires indiennes
Affairs Canada et du Nord Canada

Water Resources Division
Nunavut Regional Office
Igaluit, NU XOA OHO

May 6, 2010

Phyllis Beaulieu

Manager of Licensing
Nunavut Water Board

PO Box 119

Gjoa Haven, NU XO0A 1J0

Re: 2BB-MEL0914 — Meliadine West Gold Project — Comaplex Minerals
Corp. — Application for Amendment #2

Please be advised that Indian and Northern Affairs Canada (INAC) has
completed a review of the above noted Application for Amendment.

The Nunavut Water Board (NWB) distributed the application for comment on
April 7, 2010.

In conducting this review, | have referred to all documents on the Nunavut Water
Board FTP site as it relates to 2BB-MEL0914. Attached is a Technical Review
Memorandum for your consideration.

Please feel free to contact me should you have any questions or comments. |
can be reached at (867) 975-4566 or by email at tanya.trenholm@inac.gc.ca.

Sincerely,
Original signed by

Tanya Trenholm
Pollution Policy Specialist





I * I Indian and Northern Affaires indiennes
Affairs Canada et du Nord Canada

Our File # 9545-1
Doc. CIDMS # 398484

Technical Review Memorandum
To: Phyllis Beaulieu, Manager of Licensing - Nunavut Water Board

From: Tanya Trenholm, Pollution Policy Specialist - Indian and Northern Affairs
Canada — Water Resources Division

Re: 2BB-MEL0914 — Meliadine West Gold Project — Comaplex Minerals
Corp. — Application for Amendment #2

Existing Water Licence #: 2BB-MEL0914
Background Information:

The Applicant has requested a second application for amendment to the existing
water licence 2BB-MEL0914 for the purposes of conducting geotechnical drilling
within 31 m of a water body. The geotechnical drilling is being carried out
exclusively to determine the structural integrity of specific areas as identified as
potential water crossings along the proposed road (Rankin Inlet to Meliadine
Lake).

Drilling activities include 30 shallow drill holes (no deeper than 10 meters) to be
drilled over the next 4 years.

Recommendations / Comments

Currently, the proponent remains in non-compliance with the existing licence, as
issued July 31, 2009. Pursuant to licence condition Part B, item 2, the Licensee
is required to “furnish and maintain a financial security of $639,000 in the form, of
the nature, subject to such terms and conditions, in accordance with the
Regulations, or that is satisfactory to the Minister.”

Until such a time that the Licensee provides the required security, or a detailed
written explanation of what steps the Licensee intends to take to correct this
matter, INAC cannot support any amendments to the existing water licence.

Please feel free to contact me at your convenience should you wish to further
discuss any part of this submission to the Board. | can be reached at 867-975-
4566 or via email, tanya.trenholm@inac.gc.ca.

Cc. Lou-Ann Cornacchio, Manager, Water Resources Division — Indian and
Northern Affairs Canada;
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GJoAHAVEN, NU XO0B 1J0 NUNAVUT WATER BOARD
TEL: (867) 360-6338 NUNAVUT IMALIRIYIN KATIMAYINGI
Fax: (867) 360-6369 OFFICE DES EAUX DU NUNAVUT

File No.: 2BB-MEL0914

May 10, 2010

Mark Balog

Comaplex Minerals Corp.

901, 1015-4™ St. SW,

Calgary, AB T2R 1J4

Email: mbalog@comaplex.com

RE: NWB Licence No. 2BB-MEL0914, Meliadine Lake Gold Project: Amendment
Applications on Hold

Dear Mr. Balog:

On April 7, 2010 the Nunavut Water Board (NWB or Board) distributed the Amendment No.2
application for Licence No. 2BB-MELQ0914 (Licence) for comments with a thirty (30) day
public review period. On May 6, 2010, the NWB received a submission from Indian and
Northern Affairs Canada (INAC) identifying concerns in relation to non-compliance with Part
B, Item 2 of the Licence (copy attached). This item requires security to be furnished and
maintained in the form, of the nature, subject to such terms and conditions, in accordance with
the Regulations, or that is satisfactory to the Minister. Specifically, in its submission, INAC
states:

“Until such a time that the Licensee provides the required security, or a detailed
written explanation of what steps the Licensee intends to take to correct this
matter, INAC cannot support any amendments to the existing water licence.”

As you might be aware, the issuance of a licence or an amendment is contingent on a number of
factors to be considered by the Board including, but not limited to: the application; the results
of INAC site inspections and the corresponding compliance record of the Applicant; as well as
intervener comments provided during the application review process.

As such, prior to the NWB completing its technical review of the applications and presenting
the three amendment applications (increased water use, geotechnical drilling, and a bulk sample
program) to the Board for their consideration, the NWB will require evidence of the security
having been provided, or the submission of an agreed upon framework that will work towards a
timely solution to the issue of Non-Compliance with Part B, Item 2 of the Licence. Until this
issue has been resolved or as otherwise directed by the Board in writing, the NWB will not
undertake further technical review of the three 2BB-MEL0914 Amendments.
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At this time, the Board invites Comaplex Minerals Corp. to respond to the INAC comments and
the above letter. Upon receiving information regarding how Comaplex intends to proceed to
achieve compliance with the Licence, the NWB will consider the information, solicit comments
from interested parties (if necessary) and review the responses of interested parties to determine
whether the compliance issue has been addressed and the technical review of the three 2BB-
MEL0914 Amendments can continue.

Should you have any questions with regard to the above, please contact the undersigned at
(876) 360-6338 (email licensing@nunavutwaterboard.org) or David Hohnstein, Director of
Technical Services at (780) 443-4406 (email dts@nunavutwaterboard.org).

Regards,

Original signed by:
Phyllis Beaulieu
Manager of Licensing

Nunavut Water Board

Cc:  John Witteman
Kivalliq Distribution List



mailto:licensing@nunavutwaterboard.org�

mailto:dts@nunavutwaterboard.org�




COMAPLEX

MINERALS CORP

April 12,2010

Bernie Maclsaac, Director of Operations
Indian and Northern Affairs

Luis Manzo, Director of Lands
Kivallig Inuit Association

Dionne Filiatrault, Executive Director
Nunavut Water Board

RE: Water License 2BB-MEL0914 (Meliadine) - Security Deposit and Double

Dear Madam and Sirs,

As a company with a long history in the Kivalliq, we hoped that by the time the Meliadine
project got to the mine permitting stage that the regulatory system in Nunavut would be
functioning smoothly. It has now been tested several times and while there are still some bugs
to work out, it is getting better. The coordinated approach to mine permitting being considered
by NIRB and NWB is an excellent approach to simplifying the permitting process. The fact that
there are meetings between the various groups to discuss the issues are in themselves
significant progress.

The double bonding issue, which this note addresses, involves jurisdictional duplication. While
we fully appreciate the difficulty in trying to change a system that was imposed on each group,
there are always ways to negotiate around an impasse if all participants are willing to change.
Comaplex respectfully requests that all efforts be made by all parties to resolve this long
standing issue.

Double Bonding
Comaplex recognizes that security deposits/bonding are necessary instruments to ensure that

governments and Inuit organizations are not saddled with the cost of cleaning up mineral
exploration and development sites in the event of abandonment by, or bankruptcy of, the
mining proponent. That being said, we cannot accept, nor afford, to pay for something twice —
few companies can.

The current demand on Comaplex, as we understand it, is that we are required to keep the KivIA
bond ($925,000) in place and put up a second bond of $639,000 to INAC for exactly the same
reasons resulting in a double bond total of $1,564,000.

To get to the point, our latest Water License (2BB-MEL0914) amendment dated July 31, 2009
states the Nunavut Water Board is relying on a study done prior to its previous decision on the
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Doris project to conclude it has jurisdiction to determine total land and water related security.
It has also been relayed to us that it is INAC's policy to estimate total reclamation costs, to
provide a water security estimate to the NWB with the expectation that the NWB will accept
and set the water related security to be held by INAC. | do not know the intricacies of the
various clauses that are causing the present problems, but on IOL at the present time, both INAC
and the KivIA are presently determining a number for land and water security bonding and both
are requesting that separate security be held with each of them.

Our Water License amendment indicates that since there is no agreement between the two
holders of security (the KiviA and INAC), the NWB is not prepared to split the land and water
security. It goes on to encourage the two security holders to work towards a solution on how
the security is held.

Not to oversimplify what is obviously a complex issue, but would it not make sense for INAC to
set and hold land security on federal lands, the KivIA to set and hold land security on 0L surface
and sub-surface lands, and the NWB to set water security in all instances with the KivlA and
INAC as co-beneficiaries to the water security bond? Alternatively, one of the two could hold
the water security for both parties. The goal of the bond, after all, is to clean up the site in a
worst case scenario; nothing else.

To resolve this will require a certain level of trust backed up with a written agreement between
INAC and KivlA as to who can access the money, how it is to be allocated, who does the work,
when it would be used, etc. Such criteria could perhaps include exploration, pre-development
(bulk sampling) and development levels of engagement. We encourage dialogue between the
KivlA and INAC to determine and implement such criteria.

Adjustment of the Proposed Security
The Water License also states that under Part B, Item 3, Comaplex can request that the Board
review the amount of security.

The basis of the proposed NWB security bond for Meliadine was the RECLAIM model calculation
carried out by INAC in May 2009. Comaplex reviewed the security calculation in light of new
knowledge of the ARD potential of the waste rock and ore stored on surface. Only recently,
Golder Associates provided Comaplex with its draft report on the static testing carried out on
the waste rock and ore. The testing was carried out in accordance with INAC 1992 and MEND
2009 guidelines, thereby assuring sufficient samples were tested based on the tonnage of waste
rock and ore expected from the development. A copy of the draft Comaplex Geochemistry
Static Test Report (March 2010) can be forwarded to your technical people as required. The
final report will be forwarded once received from Golder.

The report shows that all waste rock at Meliadine is non acid generating. As a result of these
findings, there is no need to move the waste rock underground, as indicated in the RECLAIM
model calculation, as it poses no ARD risk. Ore zone samples, meanwhile, are classified as
having an uncertain ARD potential and should be treated as potentially acid generating and
isolated from the surface environment.
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The box cut for the portal has a volume of approximately 17, 000 m*. The volume of the ore on
surface is 13,065 m® as indicated in the table below. The volume of all the demolished buildings
should not occupy more than 4,000 m>. As a result, everything will fit into the box cut for the
portal and there is no need to move anything underground. Once all the materials are in place,
they can be covered with 2 metres of waste rock/overburden/top soil found in the portal area
to ensure that the buried materials remain permanently frozen, as they would not be within the
active layer.

The ore would need to be moved approximately 200 metres from where it is presently stored to
the portal area. This would require a loader, truck and dozer. No underground equipment
would be needed.

Volume and tonnes of material moved to surface

in taking the Bulk Sample (2007 — 2008)

Volume (m?) Tonnes
(swell factor 1.5)
Waste Rock 53,538 99,937
Ore 13,065 25,521

Based on the ahove, Comaplex feels the input parameters to the RECLAIM model should be
changed to reflect the new information and request it be rerun to determine the applicable
bonding based on current information.

Our calculations show the following:

e Ground support and ventilation ($25,000) is no longer needed as access to the decline is
not required,

e Hauling PAG rock underground is not necessary as the box cut for the portal will hold all
the ore presently stored on the waste rock pad. The 13,065 m?® of ore would be
moved 200 metres from where it is presently stored using loader, truck and dozer at a
cost of $2 to $4 per m® resulting in a conservative cost of $52,000 instead of the
present $234,000. This represents a saving of $182,000, and

e The indirect costs would also be reduced proportionately. The 5% engineering, 5%
management, and 20% contingency would be reduced $9,100, $9,100 and $36,400
respectively.

As a result of the above, the new bonding by our calculations would be $402,492. Comaplex
feels this is a more reasonable security for the existing project and requests the KivlA, INAC, and
the NWB to adjust their security requirements accordingly. INAC's revised security
determination would then replace the present security in Complex’s water license.

Adjustment of the KIA Security Bond
Comaplex currently has a Commercial Lease on our Meliadine property with a $925,000 Letter
of Credit (LC) payable to the KivlA. This security covers both land and water for the project. The
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Commercial Lease agreement and bond was inherited from WMC when we bhought their
company in late 2003. By all estimates to date, the total cost expected to clean up the
Meliadine camp and portal sites is to cost between $414,000 and $738,500. A similar study by
INAC using RECLAIM, estimates the cost of cleaning the Meliadine site (land and water) at
$639,000, reduced as above to $402,492,

While Comaplex inherited the KivlA security bond, it has never understood why it was required
to carry a bond in excess of even the most costly estimate to clean the site. Should negotiations
between INAC, the KIA, and the NWB not be successful on the issue of double bonding,
Comaplex respectfully requests that the KivIA reduce the present bond of $925,000 down by the
amount of the total INAC held security (whatever amount that might be).

Implications
Comaplex has been recently told by INAC that recent amendments and applications made by

Comaplex on the Meliadine property have now been put on hold, subject to reconciliation or
payment of the security bond to INAC. Clearly, this is a matter of grave concern for Comaplex
and we obviously do not want to be either in non-compliance nor hold up a project that has
clear benefits for the people of Nunavut. We request a quick and progressive response to this
matter from the relevant authorities.

Comaplex Minerals Corp.

ce: Lou-Ann Cornacchio, Manager, Water Resources
Kate Hearn, Acting Director General, Northern Project Management Office
Bryan Raymer, Water Resource Officer, INAC
lan Rumbolt, Regional Coordinator, INAC
Nicole Jauvin, Deputy Minister and President, Canadian Northern Economic
Development Agency
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From: Phyllis Beaulieu [mailto:licensing@nunavutwaterboard.org]

Sent: Monday, May 10, 2010 2:18 PM

To: Mark Balog; John Witteman

Cc: Alice Baker; Anglo American Rob Mackie; CLEY; DFO Amy Liu; DFO David Balint; DFO Eric Kan; DFO
Gary Cooper; DFO Jane Tymoshuk; DFO Loriena Melnick; DFO Nicola Johnson; DFO Sarah Olivier; EC
Environment Canada; EC Paula Smith; GN-CGS Bill Westwell ; GN-CGS Bryan Purdy; GN-CGS Rosemary
Kilpatrick; GN-CGS Roy Green ; GN-CGS Wayne Thistle; GN-DOE Allison Loder; GN-DOE Dee Karadag;
GN-DOE Froydis Reinhart; GN-DOE lan Rumbolt; GN-DOE Mike Mifflin; GN-DOE Robert Eno; Hamlet of
Arviat; Hamlet of Baker Lake; Hamlet of Chesterfield Inlet; Hamlet of Coral Harbour; Hamlet of Rankin
Inlet; Hamlet of Repulse Bay; Hamlet of Whale Cove; HTO Arviat; HTO Baker Lake; HTO Chesterfield;
HTO Rankin Inlet; HTO Repulse Bay; HTO Whale Cove; INAC Bryan Rayner; INAC Andrea Cull; INAC
Andrew Keim; INAC David Abernethy; INAC David Ningeongan; INAC lan Parsons ; INAC Jeff Mercer;
INAC LouAnn Cornacchio ; INAC Peter Kusugak; INAC Spencer Dewar; INAC Tanya Trenholm; KIA
Arviat; KIA Baker Laker; KIA Jose Kusugak; KIA Krista Zawadski; KIA Luis Manzo; KIA MSerra; KIA
Stephen Hartman; KIA Veronica Tattuinee; Makik; NIRB Info; NIRB Ryan Barry; NIRB Sophia
Granchinho; NPC Annie Ollie; NPC Bobby Suluk; NPC Brian Aglukark; NPC Conformity; NPC Jayko
Alooloo; NPC Tommy Owlijoot; NTI Carson Gillis; NTI George Hakongak; NTI Jeannie Ehaloak; NTI
Keith Morrison; David Hohnstein; Don Carr; NWB Karlette Tunaley ; NWB Steve Lines; PC Jane
Chisholm; PC Monty Yank

Subject: 100510 2BB-MEL0914 Amendment Applications on Hold

Please see attached regarding amendments to 2BB-MEL0914, Meliadine Project.
Regards,

Phyllis Beaulieu

Manager of Licensing

Nunavut Water Board

P.O. Box 119

Gjoa Haven, NU X0B 1J0

Phone: (867) 360-6338, Ext. 26

Fax: (867) 360-6369

Email: licensing@nunavutwaterboard.org



